
MARCH 25, 2014  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS  
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 11:00 a.m. MARCH 25, 2014 
 
PRESENT: 

David Humke, Chairman 
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson 

Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner 
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk 
John Slaughter, County Manager 

Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 
Charles Moore, Fire Chief 

 
 The Board convened at 11:45 a.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
14-33F AGENDA ITEM 2 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment.  Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board 
of Fire Commissioners agenda. The District will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
 
 Thomas Daley stated with the assistance of Fire Chief Charles Moore and 
his staff, the Estates at Mt. Rose applied for a Nevada Division of Forestry (NDF) Fuel 
Reduction grant, which was approved. He said the District administered the grant and 
completed the field work on the 38 acres last November. He stated another 60 acres had 
been identified as needing work, but they were waiting on NDF’s decision regarding that 
grant. He said if the grant was approved, they would be looking for assistance from the 
District later this year. He stated fuel reduction was a serious business in the Mt. Rose 
Corridor, and proactive and visionary leadership was what Chief Moore brought to the 
community. He said they trusted the Board would evaluate Chief Moore accordingly.  
 
 Robert Parker said even though the Fire Chief inherited equipment that 
was not maintained or was missing, facilities that were damaged, unsettled staff 
expectations, and a contentious political agenda, the District evolved into one that was 
well run and provided good service. He said the unincorporated areas now had full-time 
paramedics at each station, which matched resources to the demand. He stated the Hidden 
Valley station was open, the Verdi station was being moved to better serve the 



PAGE 2  MARCH 25, 2014 

community, and the Palomino Valley station would be open and staffed with volunteers. 
He said the Fire Chief’s monthly reports were fully transparent and the volunteers were 
now a single force and were much more active. He said the Chief was doing an excellent 
job and they would like to keep him. 
 
14-34F AGENDA ITEM 3 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of minutes from Board of Fire Commissioners meeting 
of February 25, 2014.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 3 be approved. 
 
14-35F AGENDA ITEM 4 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report:  A) Public Oath of new employees and 
promotions, B) Report and discussion related to fire district operations, C) Monthly 
Statistics, D) Volunteer Training and Process (requested by Commissioner 
Berkbigler), and E) Station 13 Relocation (requested by Commissioner Weber).” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore introduced the District’s recently promoted 
employees. He also introduced the District’s new firefighter/paramedics and administered 
their oaths. He stated with the addition of the new employees, the District was finally 
fully staffed. He said the new employees were selected because of what they had in their 
hearts in that they could not bear to see suffering. He stated that was the motivation they 
brought to their jobs and that motivation was shared with every other employee of the 
District. 
 
 Chairman Humke spoke about Erin Bergevin’s family, and said it was 
good to see a Bergevin back in service with the County. Commissioner Berkbigler stated 
it was a pleasure to see such a great group of people who would be putting their lives on 
the line daily to protect the County’s citizens, and she thanked them so much. 
Commissioner Hartung said this was one of the moving parts that made the County 
whole. Commissioner Jung thanked the employees’ partners and spouses due to the 
tremendous sacrifice they made. 
 
 Chief Moore said regarding Item C, he would let the report stand. He 
noted regarding the 9th Street structure fire on February 19th, when Engine 15 responded 
to the call, the firefighters only noted the smell of smoke, which was very common at 
2:00 a.m. He said the firefighters rolled down their windows and determined it was not a 
smell typical of a wood-burning fireplace, but was more the odor of a house burning. He 
said they went down the alley and found a gentleman trying to put out a kitchen fire and 
they put out the fire. He stated Captain Brian Bunn, Fire Equipment Operator Joshua 
Kutz, and Firefighter Travis Johnson were given a commendation for that extra due 



MARCH 25, 2014  PAGE 3 

diligence and for their persistence in believing something was wrong. He said he was 
very proud of the effort the crew gave in this instance and on many other calls. 
 
12:03 pm. Chairman Humke left the meeting and Vice Chairperson Weber assumed 

the gavel. 
 
 Chief Moore said the volunteers were a group of men and women who 
were very dedicated. He stated training kept the firefighters safe, made them competent, 
and was an important component of being able to get the job done. He said there needed 
to be a better way of measuring the training, because he could not manage what he could 
not measure. He stated the volunteer records were being moved to a central database. He 
said that would allow measuring the total training hours of the volunteers by department, 
by topic, by individual firefighter, and collectively; and would provide a clear 
understanding of what further training was needed. He said the current volunteer report 
was a good report, but it did not measure deeply enough what needed to be measured. He 
said if there was ever a serious injury or death, the investigators would look at how well 
the firefighter was trained, which made it absolutely essential that all of the training be 
tracked on many different levels. He stated the investigation would look at the 
individual’s training hours, those of the incident commander, and the whole spectrum of 
training done as a department. He said the only way to get all of that information was to 
computerize it. He advised the District was very close to having all of the volunteers 
report their hours within that data base, and beginning July 1st they would be able to 
measure the training going forward.  
 
 Vice Chairperson Weber said the number of training hours the volunteers 
did on their own was pretty amazing. She stated there were eight volunteer departments 
in District 5, and it was great to have the volunteers able to respond to calls in the rural 
areas where there were no career stations. She felt a great deal of thanks was owed to the 
District’s volunteers and to the County for supporting those volunteers.  
 
 Chief Moore said the staff report for the volunteers contained a matrix 
showing the complexity of the training process. He stated it took a huge investment on 
the part of the volunteers, along with the volunteer and career departments, for the 
volunteers to get to the point where they were effective and safe.  
 
 Chief Moore said regarding Commissioner Weber’s question about 
relocating Station 13, it was concluded it would improve service to one half of Stead but 
would degrade service to the other half. He believed Station 13 was already in the best 
location because its firefighters could respond to Antelope Valley and Lemmon Valley, 
to incidents on the Interstate, would be in a good position to support Station 18 in Cold 
Springs, and as a secondary response for structure and brush fires for Station 15. He 
believed what would enhance the response to Lemmon Valley would be to get an 
automatic aid agreement with the City of Reno. Vice Chairperson Weber said she was 
glad that was looked into, but she was very concerned about Station 13 not being able to 
respond to calls from the apartment complexes located across from it. She stated based on 
conversations she had, the public did not like what they saw. She said hopefully the 



PAGE 4  MARCH 25, 2014 

District could get an automatic aid agreement with the City of Reno. Chief Moore said he 
was very anxious to propel automatic aid forward, so that it happened throughout the 
service district. He stated mutual and automatic aid responses happened every day 
between the District and the City of Sparks, and he did not understand why there was no 
momentum to discuss automatic aid with the City of Reno. He noted he was a proponent 
of automatic aid because it was the right thing to do for the citizens. Commissioner 
Berkbigler said she and the Chairman had been talking about ways to set up discussions, 
so any remaining issues could be resolved. 
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
14-36F AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to accept a FEMA Staffing for Adequate Fire & 
Emergency Response (SAFER) grant award in the estimated amount of $267,564 for 
the purpose of enhancing the District’s volunteer/reserve firefighter program and 
authorize Finance to make appropriate budget adjustments.  (All Commission 
Districts)”  
   
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said Alex Kukulus, Battalion Chief, should be 
congratulated for the fine grant proposal he wrote.  
 
 Battalion Chief Kukulus explained the grant was applied for in August 
2013 and just under $200,000 of the grant would fund a volunteer coordinator position 
for two years to coordinate the approximately 150 District volunteers. He stated the 
volunteer opportunities were expanded to include a reserve program last fall. He said that 
program was for the more career oriented volunteers and allowed them to work shifts 
alongside of the District’s career firefighters. He said the remaining portion of the grant 
would add 20 reserve-volunteer firefighters, their personal protective equipment, and 
cover the fees required to bring them on board. He stated there was no obligation to 
maintain the funding beyond the two years of the grant and, at that point, it could be 
determined if the District wanted to continue those activities or not.  
 
12:22 p.m.    Chairman Humke returned and assumed the gavel. 
 
 Commissioner Jung asked if the coordinator would be a temporary 
employee. Battalion Chief Kukulus said it would be full-time employee who would have 
the upfront knowledge that the position would be funded for two years.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung felt Battalion Chief Kukulus did a great job in 
obtaining the grant. Battalion Chief Kukulus replied a lot of people supported those types 
of things.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 



MARCH 25, 2014  PAGE 5 

 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 5 be accepted 
and authorized. 
 
14-37F AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
Agenda Subject: “Consideration of approval of an Interlocal Agreement between 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and Washoe County on behalf of the 
Washoe County Sheriff’s Office for dispatch services in an amount not to exceed 
$525,000.00 for fiscal year 2014/2015. (All Commission Districts)” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore stated the agenda said this item was also for the 
Sierra Fire Protection District, but it was only for the Board of County Commissioners 
and the Board of Fire Commissioners for the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District. 
He noted it was a contract for the District’s dispatch services.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 Convened as the Board of County Commissioners and the Board of Fire 
Commissioners for the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, on motion by 
Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, which motion duly carried, it 
was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be approved. The Interlocal Agreement for same is 
attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-38F AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve an interlocal contract for cooperating purchasing with 
Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) and approve the purchase of three (3) 
new type III brush engines from Pierce Manufacturing using the H-GAC program 
in the amount of $1,011,332.00.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said this was a relatively new program, but it 
was being used by the City of Sparks and the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District, 
and was thoroughly vetted by Purchasing. He stated the program would save staff a lot of 
time due to them not having to go through a lengthy bidding process.  
 
 Vicky Van Buren, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Senior 
Accountant, said the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) was a regional council 
of governments operating under the laws of Texas and was governed by a board 
comprised of 35 elected officials. She said it was a cooperative purchasing program, 
which offered products that had been subject to a competitive bid or a competitive 
proposal format. She stated the program was over 30 years old and specialized in high 
ticket capital intensive products and services that required detailed technical 
specifications and extensive professional skills to get through the bidding process. She 
said the program specialized in safety equipment, school equipment, and public works 
equipment. She stated all local governments could become participating members, which 



PAGE 6  MARCH 25, 2014 

happened by the execution of an Interlocal Contract that contained an automatic renewal 
provision.  
 
 Ms. Van Buren said there was no annual fee to the County, but there was a 
$2,000 fee per purchase order. She stated even though the purchase was for three brush 
engines, the fee would be $2,000 because all three engines would be on one purchase 
order. She said the benefit of using this program was the participating members’ access to 
the volume purchasing discounts. She stated the H-GAC web site had all of the offered 
products’ specifications. She said the vehicles were listed by their base price and then 
items could be added based on any additional requirements. She said the District could 
also take advantage of the prepayment discount, which in this case would be a little over 
$10,000 per engine. She said representatives of the Cities of Reno and Sparks had used 
the program, were very happy with it, and intended to use it again.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked what would be the delivery date of the brush 
engines. Ms. Van Buren replied it would be sometime this December.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7 be approved. The Interlocal 
Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-40F AGENDA ITEM 10 
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Fire Chief’s announcements, requests for 
information, topics for future agendas, and statements relating to items not on the 
Agenda.  (No discussion among Commissioners will take place on this item).” 
 
 Commissioner Hartung said the District’s staff did a great job with the ash 
can program. He stated the next program would be Making a Difference, and he would be 
buying the pins for that program. He said he found the pins, which left printing the cards 
and figuring out how to present the pins. 
 
14-41F AGENDA ITEM 11 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment.  Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board 
of Fire Commissioners agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment 
during individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person.  
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 



MARCH 25, 2014  PAGE 7 

14-39F AGENDA ITEM 8 
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose 
of discussing with management representatives labor matters and negotiations.” 
 
12:32 p.m.  On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 

which motion duly carried, it was ordered that the meeting recess to a 
closed session for the purpose of discussing with management 
representatives labor matters and negotiations. 

 
2:40 p.m. The Board reconvened with all members present. 
 
14-42F AGENDA ITEM 9 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible approval of the annual performance 
evaluation for Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Fire Chief including (but 
not limited to) discussion regarding results, goals, objectives and possible action to 
current compensation and/or approve changes to existing employment agreement 
and/or authorize negotiations for a new employment agreement.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore, requested this agenda item be continued until 
the next meeting. 
 
 There was no public comment or action taken on this item. 
 
 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
2:43 p.m. There being no further business to come before the Board, on motion by 
Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner Jung, the meeting was adjourned.  
 
 
  _________________________ 
  DAVID HUMKE, Chairman 
  Truckee Meadows Fire 
  Protection District and Sierra  
  Fire Protection District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District and Sierra Fire 
Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk  
























	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	14-33F AGENDA ITEM 2
	14-34F AGENDA ITEM 3
	14-35F AGENDA ITEM 4
	14-36F AGENDA ITEM 5
	14-37F AGENDA ITEM 6
	14-38F AGENDA ITEM 7
	14-40F AGENDA ITEM 10
	14-41F AGENDA ITEM 11
	14-39F AGENDA ITEM 8
	Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of discussing with management representatives labor matters and negotiations.”
	14-42F AGENDA ITEM 9


